
                        City of Bay Village 

 

Council Minutes, Committee Session                                                              March 26, 2012 

Conference Room                      7:30 p.m. 

 

Paul A. Koomar, President of Council, presiding 

 

Present: Clark, Koomar, Lieske, Miller, Tadych, Young, Mayor Sutherland 

 

Absent: Mr. Pohlkamp 

 

Others   

Present: Law Director Ebert, Finance Director Presley, Service Director    

  Galli, Police Sergeant Elliot Silva, Fire Chief Lyons, Community Services  

  Director Bock, Recreation Director Enovitch, Operations Manager Landers 

 

President of Council Paul A. Koomar called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. in the conference 

room of Bay Village City Hall and the meeting was open to the public. 

 

AUDIENCE  

 

The following members of the audience signed in this evening: Sue Kohl, Liz Carey, Jerrie 

Barnett, Karen Kirsh, Kent Silverberg, Jeff Gallatin, Bruce Geiselman. Dick Majewski, Nancy  

Brown 

 

Jerrie Barnett stated that she is aware that the topic, Bay Skate and Bike Park, was removed from 

this evening’s agenda.  Mrs. Barnett asked Mr. Koomar why it was on the agenda to begin with. 

 

Law Director Ebert stated that he had originally placed the item on the agenda because there was 

an email concerning the Sunday issue and it will be talked about at a future meeting. 

 

Mrs. Barnett stated that she came by the skate park on Sunday and there were kids all over the 

place. 

 

Mr. Ebert stated that, from a personal standpoint, he does not have a problem with it.  They are 

not hurting anything; they are not next to a neighbor and the whole issue is whether it is a sport 

or not – it is an individual sport and the whole case law that has come out has been talking about 

it’s like going to the park and throwing a ball.  It is one person using a skate board.  Mr. Ebert 

continued, stating that he has mixed emotions on whether it is something that should be regulated 

by the trustees or shouldn’t be regulated.  He stated that it is a lot better having the kids do that 

then go and do some of the mischief kids do these days, and it doesn’t hurt anybody in this city 

because it’s not like it is next to a neighbor’s house.  Mr. Ebert stated that he is taking a real 

deep, long look because some of the cases that have come up before in Probate Court talked 

about organized sports.  It is really not organized if a kid goes up and does his own thing.  That 

was only dictum on organized; it wasn’t a court decision on organized.  There is a question of 



Committee Meeting of Bay Village City Council 

March 26, 2012 

2 

 

what are sports now.  It is no different than a kid going and shooting basketballs.  It is getting to 

the point where we are trying to encourage kids to do less mischief and do something productive.  

Mr. Ebert stated that he sees both sides of it from the Sunday restriction in Cahoon Memorial 

Park but also the benefits to the kids that aren’t hurting anything or causing a problem by an 

organized activity.  It’s not organized; it is all individuals doing it.  It is not like it’s a club to do 

these types of tricks and a group competing against a judge.  Mr. Ebert reiterated that he has 

mixed emotions about the issue. 

 

Mrs. Barnett stated that she knows Mr. Ebert has mixed emotions, but still things can go on. 

 

Mr. Ebert stated that it is very visible if something is going on that is mischief.  It is not like it is 

hidden behind and you can’t see. 

 

Mrs. Barnett asked if the police get the calls they make the children get off the skate park or   

ignore the complaint.  Sergeant Silva responded that when they get the calls of people 

complaining about kids being in the skate park on Sunday they will go over to the skate park and 

kick the kids out of the skate park.  If they don’t receive any complaints they don’t go over there 

and kick the kids off the skate park because they would rather have them in plain view in the 

skate park then kicking them out of the skate park and then they are skating over at the 

Community House steps or going behind Dover Commons and then they get complaints about 

them damaging property in the commercial district.  They would prefer them to be in the skate 

park. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

 

Karen Kirsh, Area Manager 

The Illuminating Company 

 

Mrs. Kirsh addressed Council and the administration advising that the Federal Regulatory 

Commission has a code of conduct.  Mrs. Kirsh can represent either the regulated side or the 

deregulated side of the business but can’t share information with the other side and can only 

address one side of the business in any one given phone call, email or meeting.  Mrs. Kirsh is 

present tonight to represent the regulated side of the business. 

 

Mr. Koomar thanked Mrs. Kirsh for attending and stated that over the years she has provided 

updates for Council.  He acknowledged that Mrs. Kirsh probably gets a lot of telephone calls 

when the storms hit and it is always nice to touch base when we are not in that situation. 

 

Mrs. Kirsh advised that there is a cable fault on Knickerbocker Road presently, and every other 

street light is out.  Utilities Construction is working at the site now.  Everything is excavated and 

the project is delayed due to the need to order extra wire.  When they are done, the final 

connections will be made and Utilities Construction will come back and do the landscaping 

repairs. 

 

There have been pockets in the Saddler, Ednil and Appleblossom Lane areas that have been 

particularly bothersome the last couple of years.  Regular tree trimming is being done, as 



Committee Meeting of Bay Village City Council 

March 26, 2012 

3 

 

scheduled every four years, and those circuits are on schedule to be done this year.  They are in 

the process of doing the rest of the circuit, but in this area and also on Bates, Aldrich, Powell, 

Westlawn, Walmar and Breezewood there are pockets of tree area. The Illuminating Company 

Engineering Department looked at the strings between homes that seemed to be the problem 

area.  The company went in and targeted a lot of tree removals and extensive trimming that they 

don’t normally do on those types of circuits.  Before any of that trimming is done, the 

homeowners sign off for approval. 

 

Mayor Sutherland asked if that also includes the storm damage in the Hurst area and Bates that 

backs up to the park.  Mrs. Kirsh stated that Hurst was not mentioned specifically, but Bates 

Drive was mentioned. 

 

Mrs. Kirsh further advised that the Crestwood substation is located on Bradley Road in 

Westlake, just over the railroad tracks.  The circuits start there, come down Bradley Road, some 

go over to Walker Road, and some go down to Lake Road.  They will be trimming those circuits 

starting in June. 

 

Mr. Koomar asked about the pockets on one side of Huntmere Drive.  Mrs. Kirsh stated that they 

may be doing some more tree trimming in that area if the outages do not decrease.  Extra fuses in 

the area need to be installed to sectionalize the area.  It doesn’t prevent an outage, but it reduces 

the number of customers affected.  Mr. Tadych stated that it has been effective in the area where 

extra fuses have been installed.  Mr. Tadych asked if the extra fuses will be installed this year 

and Mrs. Kirsh stated that she is trying to have that done this year, hopefully by fall.  She stated 

that it is a work in progress, and if the extra fuses are not effective, they may be able to come 

back and do some accelerated tree trimming in the area as well. 

 

Mrs. Kirsh stated that they have received a report of street lights out on Dwight Drive.  Mrs. 

Kirsh spoke with Operations Manager Landers who stated that he reported the lights out two 

weeks ago.  Mrs. Kirsh asked Mr. Landers to provide her with the addresses of the lights out for 

tracing those reports. 

 

Mrs. Kirsh noted that anyone can report street light outages or damaged poles on the Illuminating 

Company website which is Firstenergycorp.com, going to the operating company, which is The 

Illuminating Company, and Report an Outage.  Up to ten at a time can be reported if there is 

either an address or six digit pole number. There are no pole numbers on the black, fiberglas 

poles.  It must be a six digit pole number on a wooden pole.  Mrs. Kirsh encouraged 

disseminating this information through ward newsletters, and emails to constituents.  Mrs. Kirsh 

stated that she can be the troubleshooter if the outage is reported and doesn’t get fixed.  Mr. 

Koomar asked the Mayor if this information can be included under “Service” on the city’s 

website. 

 

Mr. Young asked about the companies that share pole space with the Illuminating Company.  He 

asked if there is a limit to the length of time before they move their connections to a new pole 

when an existing pole is damaged and repaired or replaced.  Mrs. Kirsh stated that she receives 

many of those complaints, and the process is that when there is a pole broken, CEI comes in to 

set the new pole.  If there is phone equipment attached, they transfer the wires to the new pole 



Committee Meeting of Bay Village City Council 

March 26, 2012 

4 

 

and cut off the top of the old pole so they can transfer over.  Once they transfer the phone 

company is responsible to pull the old pole.  They are notified once the transfer is made on top to 

the pole.  Mrs. Kirsh stated that other than issuing reminders she does not have a lot of control, 

but does have a contact name at AT&T that she can provide.  If it is only the cable company, the 

Illuminating Company is still responsible to pull the pole.  They are not always notified by the 

cable company, so if Mrs. Kirsh is contacted she can check to see if there is an attachment. 

 

Mrs. Kirsh advised that whenever there is a major storm event or outage emails are sent out three 

times per day to provide information as to how many customers are out in the city and how the 

company is working to restore service.  They work through the clock until all power is restored.  

Communication includes when final restoration is expected so that customers can prepare for 

living arrangements. 

 

Mayor Sutherland thanked Mrs. Kirsh for the information she provides through emails regarding 

storm updates and preparations.  The Mayor stated that it has been well over a year since the 

Huntmere area had their last major power outage and stated that if anything can be done to 

expedite the extra fuses being installed it would be very much appreciated. 

 

Mr. Clark stated that, in the past, First Energy had made capital improvements throughout the 

grid in Bay Village.  He asked if there is anything planned in the next couple of years for system 

enhancements or improvements.   

 

Mrs. Kirsh stated that the Crestwood substation on Bradley Road was upgraded in 2008, with 

capacity added in anticipation of the Cuyahoga Community College project.  A new circuit will 

also be put in running to that area and they will be shifting some load to and from those circuits 

to keep everything balanced in the area.  A new substation was installed in Avon, Ohio in 2006 

when the area started booming.  More capacity was added to the Dover Substation in North 

Olmsted.  Incremental capacity is added to keep up with the growth in the area.  In 2008, they 

were looking at buying land on Schwartz Road and Center Ridge Road in Westlake for a new 

substation.  Due to the economy downgrade, those plans are on hold. 

 

Mr. Koomar noted that the outage updates from Mrs. Kirsh that come through in the late 

afternoon, early evening hours are helpful to assist residents in making a decision about living 

arrangements.  Mrs. Kirsh noted that when there is a major storm they do conference calls three 

times per day, early in the morning, between Noon and 2 p.m., and between 5 p.m. and 8 p.m.  

Updates are sent after those calls.  She noted that it is difficult for her to take calls since she 

handles twenty-four different municipalities and found that the best way to communicate is the 

mass emails.   

 

Nancy Brown asked Mrs. Kirsh how the Illuminating Company determines to whom they 

outsource their tree trimming.  She stated that every circuit is bid out and contracts awarded 

based on the best bidder.  Contractors vary from year to year. 

 

Mrs. Kirsh was thanked for attending tonight’s meeting. 

 

 



Committee Meeting of Bay Village City Council 

March 26, 2012 

5 

 

 

 

ENVIRONMENT, SAFETY AND COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

  

 Internet Café Moratorium Extension 

 

 Mr. Clark advised that the moratorium in place expired on December 31, 2011.  The plan is to 

 extend this moratorium for an additional period of time. 

 

Mr. Ebert stated that he sent by email a copy of Sub. H.B. 195 Bill Analysis from the Ohio 

Legislative Service Commission.  Mr. Ebert noted that many surrounding communities do have  

internet cafés presently.  They operate in commercial zoning.  Mr. Ebert stated that there has 

been one inquiry about the establishment of an internet café in Bay Village. 

 

Mr. Tadych stated that he has no problem extending the moratorium for six months.  Mr. Clark 

stated that it would make sense to extend the moratorium to June 30, 2012.  Mr. Tadych 

suggested extending the moratorium to the end of 2012.  Mr. Clark agreed.  An ordinance will be 

prepared for the April 2, 2012 meeting of Council. 

 

Fire Lock Boxes 

 

Mr. Clark advised that Council has received copies of sections of the 2007 Ohio Fire Code and 

the 2011 Ohio Fire Code regarding key boxes.  Mr. Clark deferred to Chief Lyons for further 

information. 

 

Fire Chief Lyons stated that the commercial Knox Box requirement was instituted in 2007 with a 

three-fold purpose.  The commercial key box is basically a small safe to replace the huge rings of 

keys needed to be carried by the Fire Department on their engines at one point in time for all the 

businesses and some of the residences in the city.  It was difficult to keep track of several 

hundred keys and to find the appropriate key in an emergency situation was unworkable.  The 

solution is to install a box for which the Fire Department has a single, universal key coded to 

open all of the boxes in the city.  Those boxes contain the individual keys to individual 

commercial properties.  When arriving on the scene, the box opened by the Fire Department 

gives them the ability to get into the business much more quickly.  The Chief noted that a fire 

doubles in size every thirty seconds and getting in the door quickly through the key available in 

the Knox Box saves the emergency responders nine and one-half minutes which is substantial in 

terms of fire loss or endangered lives.  He noted that replacing a door that would have to be 

broken through for access without a key would cost approximately $1,000 or more.  If entry has 

to be made, the existence of the Knox Box with a key is a cost savings for the commercial 

business owner.  The Chief further noted that this is being done with a regional approach in 

mind, matching some of the other cities in the area, and if all cities have the same type of key 

box it will allow the exchange of services in a more efficient manner. 

 

Mr. Koomar noted that the ordinance has been in existence since 2007, and the push for 

enforcement has been done more recently.  Chief Lyons stated that they have been trying to get 



Committee Meeting of Bay Village City Council 

March 26, 2012 

6 

 

businesses to comply with the code and presently they are upwards of 80% of businesses in town 

that are complying. 

 

Typically one Knox Box is sufficient for a building.  If there is a building with twenty tenants, it 

may require two boxes.  The typical Knox Box will hold six to ten keys without a problem. 

 

Mrs. Barnett stated that she has a key box on her home and asked if she ever has to check it or do 

anything to the box.  Chief Lyons stated that the residential key box is a separate program, 

similar in nature.  The boxes are much smaller, very secure, and cost approximately $25.00.  

They include a medical form to provide information for the responders and that form must be 

kept up to date.  If the locks on the home are changed, the current key must be placed in the box. 

 

Mr. Tadych asked if the Fire Department sells these key boxes.  Chief Lyons stated that they do 

not sell them but have an agreement with the manufacturer.  Knox Company has an order form 

and if a business needs to order one, they fill out the form and an authorized member of the Fire 

Department must sign the form otherwise the box will not be sent out.  The commercial property 

does business directly with Knox Company and will only recognize the authorized Fire 

Department signature to send the box out.  The transaction is between the commercial property 

owner and the Knox Company. 

 

Mr. Koomar noted that he did get a telephone call of possibly a less expensive alternative.  He 

asked Chief Lyons if he is recommending the Knox Box because of durability and the 

department’s relationship with them.  Chief Lyons stated that it is a proven company and is the 

same box that all of the other cities in the area use.  Since a vast majority of our businesses are 

already using the Knox Box, rather than going to a system where multiple keys would be 

required, the universal use of the Knox Box would be preferred.   

 

Mayor Sutherland stated that if there is ever a major fire event there would be mutual aid and it 

is important to have the same equipment as the other communities in case they would happen to 

get to the site first. 

 

Mr. Young commented about the possibility of obtaining an insurance discount by virtue of 

having a lock box for easy access.  Mayor Sutherland stated that it can, over time, potentially 

affect the city’s ISO rating which does affect insurance rates.  

 

Mr. Clark advised that the Environment, Safety and Community Services Committee held a 

meeting this evening at 6 p.m. to cover a number of topics.  Council will be kept advised of the 

work in progress. 

   

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS, STREETS/SEWERS/DRAINAGE COMMITTEE 

 

There was no report this evening. 

 

 FINANCE & CLAIMS COMMITTEE 

 



Committee Meeting of Bay Village City Council 

March 26, 2012 

7 

 

Mr. Young reported that the Finance and Claims Committee, earlier this evening, reviewed the 

budget variance report through the month of February.  He stated that some of the variables that 

concern the Finance and Claims Committee have to do with health insurance, municipal income 

tax, and overtime wages.  Mr. Presley will institute a separate line item for overtime for police, 

fire, and paramedic units on future reports.   

 

PLANNING, ZONING, PUBLIC GROUNDS AND BUILDINGS COMMITTEE 

 

Mr. Miller advised that the Planning, Zoning, Public Grounds and Buildings Committee has been 

working on an ordinance with students from Baldwin Wallace engaged in a capstone class focusing 

on energy sustainability.  The committee and the students have been discussing three topics that 

may come to ordinance.  One that they are following more closely is solar energy generation and an 

ordinance specifically addressing that kind of energy generation is under consideration.  The 

committee feels that solar energy generation is the most compatible with Bay Village residences.  

Another sustainable energy is wind power generation or small wind energy.  The third energy 

source being studied is geo-thermal energy for those interested in providing energy recovery 

through geo-thermal systems as part of the heating and cooling systems in their homes. 

 

Mr. Miller stated that before the committee and students get too far with Section 1374, the solar 

energy proposed ordinance, he will circulate a copy to the Council for questions and comments. 

 

Mr. Koomar advised keeping Director of Public Service and Properties Galli informed from a 

building and permit perspective.  Mayor Sutherland added that there are homes in Bay Village that 

have geo-thermal systems. 

 

Mr. Miller stated that the intent would not be to craft legislation that makes their systems non-

conforming but is to address the topic moving forward.  The language is being crafted so that it 

gives a broad generalization and compatibility with other ordinances that develop setbacks and rear 

yard composition if there are any accessory structures that would be compatible with that existing 

infrastructure.  There has been model ordinance that has suggested that to a certain degree the panel 

systems may not require a building permit. However, any of the transfer gear will still require an 

electrical permit and a certified electrician doing the installation.  Severability conditions will need 

the Law Department review as well.  

 

RECREATION & PARK IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Mrs. Lieske had no report this evening. 

 

SERVICES, UTILITIES & EQUIPMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Mr. Tadych had no report this evening.  

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

Resolution adopted by Cuyahoga County Council on February 28, 2012 proclaiming May 

of each year as Multiple Chemical Sensitivity Awareness Month in Cuyahoga County 



Committee Meeting of Bay Village City Council 

March 26, 2012 

8 

 

 

The Council has received a copy of a resolution adopted by the Cuyahoga County Council 

proclaiming May of each year as Multiple Chemical Sensitivity Awareness Month in Cuyahoga 

County in order to promote awareness about Multiple Chemical Sensitivity (MCS) and about 

actions that can be taken to reduce chemical triggers and improve our environment.  The 

Cuyahoga County Council encourages the Bay Village City Council to pass similar legislation.  

A resolution will be prepared for the April 2, 2012 meeting of Council after redrafting by the 

Law Department. 

 

 Discussion of meeting cancellation of April 9, 2012 due to vacation schedules 

 

Mr. Koomar stated that he had discussed the fact that the week of April 9 is spring break for 

students in the city.  Messrs. Koomar and Miller will be out of the city, and Mr. Pohlkamp may 

also be out of the city.  There is a regular meeting of Council on April 2, 2012, and, five 

Mondays in April, and Mr. Koomar is considering cancelling the April 9 meeting unless there is 

business that needs to be transacted.  Mayor Sutherland stated that it is fine with the 

administration if the April 9 committee meeting of Council is cancelled.  Mr. Koomar stated that 

cancellation notices for April 9 will be issued. 

 

Charter Review Commission 

 

Mr. Koomar advised that he has been approached by the Charter Review Commission who has 

been working with the administration.  They are reaching out to the City Council and Planning 

Commission, and other bodies, for any thoughts or ideas that they may want to put forward for 

consideration in their discussions.  He asked that in the next week any ideas be sent to him for 

consolidation.  Mr. Koomar will attend the next meeting of the Charter Review Commission on 

Monday, April 2 at 6 p.m., and would like all of those thoughts before that time. 

 

Mr. Clark asked when recommendations from the Charter Review Commission would go on the 

ballot.  Mayor Sutherland stated that they would have to go on the ballot in November.  She 

stated that the deadline for issues is August 7 or 8 for the ballot.  The timeline that she has laid 

out for the Charter Review Commission is that they are hoping to have some initial 

recommendation to Council by mid-June.  She advised that the language in the charter currently 

says that Council “shall” put them on the ballot so Council cannot really tinker with the wording.  

The Mayor stated that if there is enough time, they would probably recommend putting the 

legislation on three readings so that people are aware of the issues. 

 

Mr. Clark asked if there were many issues presented to the ballot as a result of the charter review 

in 2002.  Mayor Sutherland stated that there were some, but this is her second time around with 

the Charter Review Commission.  She does not think that that’s ever happened in the history of 

the City of Bay Village that a mayor has been through two cycles.  The Mayor thinks that this 

commission is much more focused and it is not just a matter of coming up with something like 

gender neutral language and is looking at substantive issues.  Mayor Sutherland stated that she 

thinks this is good because there are things that really need to be addressed. 

 



Committee Meeting of Bay Village City Council 

March 26, 2012 

9 

 

Mr. Miller, Council’s representative to the Charter Review Commission, stated that the second 

meeting of the commission brought the commission together to outline or bring to light the 

articles of the charter they thought needed some discussing and simultaneously taking away from 

the discussion those articles they felt are just fine.  The homework is next to come to the table 

with the commission members’ very specific thoughts about each of those articles that were 

discussed. 

 

Mr. Young asked if changes are made through the ballot process they would go into effect on 

January 1, 2013.  The Mayor responded affirmatively.   

 

In compliance with Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code, Mr. Miller MOVED, second by 

Mr. Young, to adjourn to Executive Session regarding, labor contracts, personnel, and litigation. 

             

Roll Call Vote:  Yeas- Clark, Koomar, Lieske, Miller, Tadych, Young.  Nays – None.  Motion 

carried 6-0. 

 

Council reconvened in an open meeting at 8:38 p.m.  Present were: Clark, Koomar, Lieske, 

Miller Tadych, Young, Also present: Mayor Sutherland, Law Director Ebert, Service Director 

Galli, Finance Director Presley. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 8:38 p.m. 

 

 

 

_____________________________    __________________________ 

Paul A. Koomar, President of Council   Joan Kemper, Clerk of Council 

 

 

 

 

 


